

Aeronautical Telecommunication Network Panel (ATNP)  
Applications and Upper Layer Work Group (WG3)  
Sixth Meeting  
Brussels, Belgium  
15-26 April 1996

**Meeting Report from the Fifth Meeting of ATNP WG3**

Presented by the WG3 Rapporteur

Attached is the final meeting report from the fifth meeting of ATNP WG3.

**AERONAUTICAL TELECOMMUNICATION NETWORK PANEL (ATNP)  
Working Group 3 -- Applications and Upper Layers  
Fifth Meeting**

**(South Brisbane, Queensland, Australia, 5-14 February 1996)**

**I. Introduction**

The fifth meeting of ATNP Working Group 3 (WG3) took place on 5 to 14 February 1996 in South Brisbane, Queensland, Australia, hosted by AirServices Australia.

Mr. Ron Jones, US Member and Rapporteur of WG3, welcomed the participants. After introductions by the WG3 participants, the list of working papers was prepared.

A copy of the meeting agenda is presented in Attachment 1. A list of participants is presented in Attachment 2. A list of working papers with presenter and agenda item is presented in Attachment 3.

**II. Minutes of the Meeting**

**1. Agenda Item 1: Administrative Items and Approval of the Agenda**

**1.1 Administrative announcements**

Mr. Owen Marsh, the panel member from Australia and the host for the meeting described the meeting arrangements. Mr. Ron Jones, Rapporteur of WG3 proposed the meeting hours and went over other administrative items.

**1.2 Discuss arrangements for Sixth WG3 meeting (April 1996 in Brussels)**

Danny Van Roosbroek presented paper WP5-24 on arrangements for the sixth WG3 meeting in Brussels, to be held 15-26 April 1996. A block of rooms have been reserved by Eurocontrol at the Royal Crown Hotel, Rue Royale 250, B-1210 Brussels, Telephone +32 2 220 66 11. Working group members are requested to make hotel reservations by 8 March 1996. Eurocontrol will provide ground transportation from the Hotel in downtown Brussels to the Eurocontrol headquarters building. Tentative arrangement will for the bus to depart from the hotel at 0815 each morning and depart from Eurocontrol at 1715 to return working group members to the hotel.

**1.3 Review Agenda**

The proposed agenda (WP5-1, Attachment 1) was reviewed by the working group. It was decided to revise the schedule associated with the agenda based on group travel plans. It was agreed to review the draft SARPs of all three subgroups as the first priority, cover validation issues at the end of the first

week, then to review any remaining CNS/ATM-1 Package SARPs materials, CNS/ATM-2 Package topics and guidance material topics during the second week.

## **2. Review and Approve Report of the fourth (Banff) meeting of WG3.**

Mr. Jones, Rapporteur of WG3 presented WP5-2, the Banff meeting report. The report of the fourth meeting of WG3 was reviewed. The meeting report was approved by WG3 with minor editorial changes and the final document was issued as an outcome of the meeting in South Brisbane. Mr. Asbury also requested that the SARPs editors' list be appended to future meeting reports.

### **2.1 Review issues and action items from the previous WG3 meetings**

The action items from the previous working group meeting were incorporated into their respective agenda items. Generally the action items were actions placed on the subgroups, the status of which were to be reviewed during the course of the South Brisbane meeting.

## **3. Review inputs received from other ATNP working groups and other ICAO bodies**

### **3.1 Review inputs/results from the WG1 meeting**

Tom Calow briefed WG1 issues. WG1 is responsible for system-level requirements and issues, including planning for the ATNP/2 meeting. Mr. Calow presented the State letter which had been issued by ICAO indicating the ATNP/2 agenda. Mr. Calow then briefed the status of the products of the WG1: the World Wide Plan (WWP), the updated Lexicon, and the updated Naming and Addressing Paper. These will be formally included as ATNP/2 deliverables. Mr. Calow announced that WG1 had endorsed a proposal for a newly called WG1/2/3 meetings planned for 7-18 October 1996, to prepare the CNS/ATM-1 Package validation report for submission to ATNP/2. This approach for developing the validation report and the need for working group meetings in October 1996, as had been approved by WG1, was proposed to WG3 by Mr. Jones in WP5-3 and was subsequently accepted by WG3. Mr. Jones offered to host the meeting in the US and this was agreed by the working group. Mr. Calow reported that WG1 is requesting that WG3 identify system level requirements that could be reflected in Sub-Volume 1 of the CNS/ATM-1 SARPs.

Discussion of WP5-4, detailing a request from the Banff meeting of WG1, was deferred until the second week of the WG3 meeting where it was to be covered along with other CNS/ATM-2 Package topics. The paper provides a requirement of protection of DLA and X.400 messages against masquerade, modification, and replay. WG3 noted the paper for incorporation in CNS/ATM-2 Package planning for defining the work program associated with the development of the CNS/ATM-2 Package SARPs.

WG3/Flimsy 4 concerned a request from WG1 for system requirements for inclusion in Sub-Volume 1. WG3/SG1 may discuss general/system requirements for Brussels. WG3/SG2 will produce a Part 0 for air-ground applications by the Brussels meeting. SG3 has produced its general requirements in its VDB work. These WG3 materials may form the basis of providing system level requirements to WG1 for possible inclusion in Sub-Volume 1. WP5-21 provided a definition of system level requirements (from WG1), Flimsy 4 described the principles for the development of system level requirements for Sub-

Volume 1 that had been developed by WG1, and Flimsy 1 was a request from WG1 asking for WG3 support to identify system level requirements. WG3 endorsed the review of the WG3 developed documents and identification of candidate system level requirements. WG3 produced Flimsy 3 to summarize the discussions and agreements of WG3 related to the request from WG1 on the proposed role of Sub-Volume 1 to the other SARPs Sub-Volumes. This flimsy further proposed a specific action plan to progress the work.

***ACTION ITEM** - WG3 subgroups are requested to review their draft SARPs and identify any potential system level requirements. The list of such requirements should be provided to Mr. Steve Van Trees or Mr. Tom Kraft (see WG3 mailing list) as soon as possible.*

### **3.2 Review inputs from the ADS Panel**

Mr. Jones indicated that there had been a meeting between the three ATNP working group rapporteurs and the two rapporteurs of the ADSP working groups. The ATNP rapporteurs emphasized a need for ADSP to focus on defining the operational requirements in packages rather than just defining end-state operational requirements. There was also agreement that ADSP would provide the definition of the CNS/ATM-2 Package operational requirements to the ATNP working groups by March 1997.

Since there had been a number of coordination efforts by the member of the WG3 subgroups with the ADSP working groups, the results of these efforts were discussed under the other agenda items.

### **3.3 Review of inputs from other ICAO bodies**

Mr. Jones briefed WP 5-21. He indicated a streamlined approach would be needed for the ATNP/2 working plan. Clearly, the ATNP/2 could not review perhaps 1500 pages of SARPs, Guidance Material, planning documents, etc. in the 8 working days that have tentatively been scheduled for ATNP/2. The detailed review of the draft CNS/ATM-1 materials would clearly have to take place within the working groups and the ATNP/2 schedule would only permit a high-level review of the materials during ATNP/2. WG1 has discussed the possible approach of submitting a cover working paper for each SARPs Sub-Volume, or major Sub-Volume part, and simply presenting only the summary material contained in the working papers. With this approach, only working papers containing specific comments against the CNS/ATM-1 material would lead ATNP/2 to review of the detailed technical provisions of the SARPs.

***ACTION ITEM** - The Subgroup chairmen shall produce working papers from WG3 to the ATN Panel describing their SARPs Sub-Volume or major part (i.e., MHS, ICC, ADS, CM, CPDLC, FIS, ULA). These working papers will need to be reviewed and approved by WG3 at the Munich meeting, in June 1996. These working papers will need to be kept to 6 pages maximum length and will need to be submitted to ICAO shortly after the conclusion of the Munich WG3 meeting.*

Mr. Jones noted that ATNP/2 is still scheduled for November 1996. It will be the first Panel meeting in the new ICAO building that is currently under construction. Mr. Calow indicated that there was some very real concern that the ATNP/2 schedule could be impacted by even a modest delay in ICAO being

able to move into the new building. Mr. Asbury suggested the ICAO regional office in Paris as a viable ICAO alternative meeting location.

The meeting of the joint working groups in Munich is expected to produce a working paper for ATNP/2 describing the approach taken for the validation of the CNS/ATM-1 Package SARPs and recommending that the panel approve the SARPs based on successful validation. WG1 will take the lead in preparing this working paper for approval at the Joint WG meeting in Munich. The working paper will be submitted to the ICAO secretary as an outcome of the Munich meeting. The working paper will reference annexes containing the detailed validation results, but these attachments to the working paper will not be submitted to ICAO until approximately 2 weeks before ATNP/2. The October 1996 meeting of the ATNP working groups will develop and approve these annexes in the form of detailed validation reports for each Sub-Volume and major part (e.g., MHS, CPDLC, etc.). This will be the focus of the planned October 1996 meeting of the ATNP working groups.

Mr. Jones described the briefing he and Mr. Sharma gave to the ANC on December 1, 1995. Issues raised relative to the work of ATNP were the schedule and amount of documentation that must be considered at ATNP/2. The ANC members also indicated a desire to see ATN SARPs requirements traced to ADSP operational requirements. The rapporteurs also affirmed the desire to put the 24-bit aircraft address in flight plans. The rapporteurs also stressed the need for an ICAO office to serve as the ATN address registration authority.

#### **4. ATN Upper Layer SARPs**

##### **4.1 Report from SG3**

Mr. Steve Van Trees, chairman of SG3 (Upper Layer Architecture) delivered the SG3 report, WP5-8. He reported that the subgroup had met monthly since the Banff meeting, with meetings in Bracknell, Boston, and Toulouse. He indicated that SG3 still maintained the schedule for having stable base standards (i.e., ITU-T and ISO) that was proposed at the first WG3 meeting in San Diego. At this fifth meeting of WG3, SG3 offered baselined draft CNS/ATM-1 SARPs, first draft CNS/ATM-1 Guidance Material (GM), and a draft Validation Plan.

Mr. Van Trees pointed to some of the difficulties in standardizing and separating SARPs and GM. For example, the ITU-T efficiency enhancements have defects that have already been reported to ITU-T but are not yet reflected in the base standard. It is required that these be implemented in ICAO, but the defects are on schedule in ITU-T to be reflected in a correction to the base standard before ATNP/2. Thus pending the ITU-T action to correct the base standard, the ITU-T defect report requirements are currently documented in the draft ULA GM. Mr. Asbury raised the important point of the general need for a continuing CNS/ATM-1 Package defect report register. This is already the case for the Sub-Volume 5 requirements tracking and will need to be supported by WG3 for Sub-Volumes 2, 3 and 4.

##### **4.2 Review of draft ULA SARPs material**

Mr. Van Trees then presented WP5-6, the draft ULA SARPs, version 1.3. This is the version approved by SG3 at its Boston meeting. According to the Banff agreements, SG3 was empowered to progress the document to the baseline draft based on completion of naming and addressing material (3.2) and

registration material (Annex A). He therefore presented these new sections in detail. Section 3.2 has material on AP-titles, application context names, and presentation data value encoding of application-layer data. Annex A has naming semantics and the CNS/ATM-1 registration tree.

Mr. Van Trees then accepted a series of detailed editing comments. In Chapter 1, the non-use by MHS of the ATN ULA was affirmed. In Annex A, material was recast into SARPs and notes, and the whole section was moved to 3.2.1 - 3.3.5. Mr. Van Trees undertook to contact the SARPs editor, Dr. Kerr, and produce an approved change-bar UL SARPs version 2.0 reflecting a new baseline to be reported out of the South Brisbane WG3 meeting.

The registration authority material was also reviewed. In the registration tree, IATA was identified as arc 19, but requested no further hierarchy. At the lowest level, GWB and AMHS were deleted, and SMA was added. The label FIS was changed to ATI.

Mr. Van Trees, representing WG3, participated in discussions in WG2 related to WG3 Flimsy 6 and WG3 Flimsy 9. The former flimsy proposed to expand the definition of the traffic types from 8 to 10 and to assign a value for each traffic type. This was based on inputs from the ADSP WG members. Mr. Van Trees reported back to WG3 that WG2 would consider the proposal, but did not plan to put the change into the baseline draft Sub-Volume SARPs until the change was endorsed at the upcoming ADSP WGOW meeting in March 1996. This input will be reviewed by WG2 and WG3 in Brussels.

Mr. Van Trees reported back to WG3 on the discussions related to flimsy 9 on the subject of "TS-user Specification". The flimsy proposed that:

- a) WG2 confirm that the security label is not routinely transmitted air-ground
- b) WG2 reconsider the encoding of the security label
- c) WG2 incorporate the revised list of traffic types (from flimsy 6)
- d) WG2 retain connectionless transport protocol
- e) WG3 informed WG2 that the expedited data option has been eliminated from the ULA for CNS/ATM-1 Package
- f) WG2 insure that RER will be supported below that determined solely by Fletcher's checksum.
- g) WG2 provide guidance on using a combination of subnetwork error control mechanisms and transport checksum to support RERs of  $10^{-6}$  to  $10^{-7}$
- h) WG2 note the naming tree that has been prepared by WG3 (attached to flimsy)

Mr. Van Trees reported that WG2 had the following responses to the above items:

- a) correct
- b) WG2 will reconsider if WG3 provides specific proposal for revised encoding

- c) as noted above, WG2 will accept after ADSP WG of the Whole has reviewed specific proposal. ADSP input will be provided at Brussels WG2 and WG3 meetings.
- d) will retain CLTP
- e) no WG2 response needed
- f) WG2 will use RER = low to invoke the use of transport checksum
- g) guidance will be prepared to require a subnetwork error control mechanism as well as providing the transport checksum
- h) noted by WG2

Subsequently Mr. Van Trees introduced Flimsy 8 proposing two alternative codings for the security label (item b above). The more efficient coding alternative (4 octets) had no provisions for extensibility while the other alternative (8 octets) would preserve an extensible security label. Either alternative offers significantly more efficient coding than that currently defined (15 octets) in Sub-Volume 5. The Flimsy also provided proposed text for Sub-Volume 5 related to the relationship of RER and transport checksum and the requirement for ATN subnetworks to incorporate error control mechanisms. WG3 endorsed the use of the extensible security label and the proposal text related to this latter topic.

Later in the WG3 meeting Mr. Van Trees presented a draft (proposed as version 2.0) of the ULA SARPs that had been updated by Tony Kerr (Eurocontrol) to reflect the changes accepted by WG3 during the earlier review of version 1.3. There were a very few very minor editorial changes identified during the review. The document editor was empowered to make the identified editorial changes and to issue the document as the new baseline, version 2.0, of the draft ULA SARPs. The working group observed that the use of RER may need to be clarified in the interworking and application SARPs to insure fully consistent use across all CNS/ATM-1 Package SARPs documentation.

### **4.3 Review of draft ULA Guidance Material**

Mr. Van Trees then briefly introduced WP5-7, ULA Guidance Material (GM). He indicated that it was derived equally from TULIP material and newly generated material. The new material provided guidance to the common implementors' questions asked to date of SG3. The section on ACSE is viewed as especially useful guidance. The GM also holds 'temporary requirements' being the above mentioned ITU-T defect reports. The GM contains much new material on the bit encoding of all ULA PDUs. Mr. Jones requested WG3 to review the ULA GM particularly from the standpoint of material to be added. References to RTCA documents should either be deleted or made generic. A detailed review of updated GM will be conducted at the Brussels WG3 meeting.

### **4.4 ULA SARPs validation approach and plans**

Mr. Van Trees then presented WP5-17, Upper Layer Validation Plans. The paper is derived from the Banff WG3 report and Banff WG2 Flimsy 12, that was reviewed and endorsed by WG3 in Banff. The paper sets forth the Validation Objectives (VOs) of ULA, such as general OSI conformance, dialogue service support, embedded application support, naming and addressing, and transport service. The VOs are then decomposed into Validation Data Base (VDB) entries. The VDB entries are then decomposed into individual 'Shall' statements. SG3 performed a comprehensive trace of VDB entries, such that all VDB entries have 'Shall' statements, and vice versa. The Appendixes to the document set forth the three validation projects currently under way for ULA, and a list of the 187 shall statements of ULA

(version 1.3). It was noted that version 2.0 of the ULA SARPs has 169 shall statements. WG3 declared the SG3 contribution a model for other validation approaches.

Mr. Paul Hennig presented WP5-20 that provides the detailed PICS from the ATN Systems Inc. (ATNSI) Request for Proposal (RFP). Mr. Hennig explained that ATNSI is planning for the development of a reference router and an end system ATN protocol stack up through the ULA. Mr. Van Roosbroek asked about the ULA requirements not reflected in the PICS. Mr. Hennig responded that the entire SARP, Volume 4 had been verbally incorporated in the work statement when the potential vendors were briefed in the functionality being required by ATNSI. Mr. Hennig then asked for WG3's statement on the RFP's static conformance. Mr. Van Trees responded that the RFP PICS had been derived from version 1.1 (last Banff) of the SARP. Version 1.3 of the SARP, the final draft SARP, has changes in the SARP PICS for the AARQ and A-ABORT sections. The AARQ change is a simplification of the naming and addressing requirements. The A-ABORT change (requiring user data) is a Banff requirement. The detailed changes were made available in a note to IATA.

#### **4.5 Review plans for ULA documentation for CNS/ATM-2 Package**

Mr. Van Trees presented WP5-18 on CNS/ATM-2 Package SARP Planning focused on the evolution of the upper layer functions beyond CNS/ATM-1 Package. The working paper proposed candidate work program items for progress the CNS/ATM-2 Package ULA definition. The paper reported that ISO standardization work will be virtually complete by Munich. Examples of the application service element (ASE) enhancements proposed by the working paper are:

- a) a time ASE for ATN standardization
- b) message reference number ASE
- c) confirmed data service element
- d) ROSE and CMIP profiles to work over the ULA
- e) Profile for supporting security services in the ULA

The general principles proposed for the CNS/ATM-2 Package ULA are:

- a) All versions of future applications must coexist with CNS/ATM-1 Package applications
- b) All CNS/ATM-2 Package ULA elements must interoperate with CNS/ATM-1 Package elements.

WG3 noted the paper, and indicated that it would accept both new ULA work in Brussels, and as input to CNS/ATM-2 planning documents for Munich.

#### **4.6 Tasking for SG3**



Mr. Van Trees presented working paper WP5-18. This working paper concerns CNS/ATM-2 Package ULA SARPs Planning. WG3 affirmed support for the ACSE, edition 3 work and the ASO template work. It was noted that the advisor of Eurocontrol noted the ground-ground forwarding in support of ADS, CM and CPDLC may be supported by a requirement for a connectionless-mode upper layer architecture.

SG3 was tasked with implementing a defect report tracking system against the baseline SARPs using the defect report form in WP5-12 appendix E, modified as necessary.

SG3 was tasked with progressing the development of validation documents (e.g., definition of validation objectives) and serving as the coordination point for validation activities of member organizations to progress the CNS/ATM-1 Package validation program consistent with the approach defined in Flimsy 10 to this meeting report.

Mr. Van Trees reported that a March 1996 SG3 meeting is scheduled to review CNS/ATM-1 Package ULA GM and commence CNS/ATM-2 Package related SARPs.

## **5. Air-Ground Application SARPs**

### **5.1 Report of SG2**

Mr. Mike Asbury presented WP5-12 (Air-Ground Application SARPs), WP5-31 (Toulouse SG2 report), and WP5-32 (Detailed Changes). Mr. Asbury reported that one SG2 meeting was held in Toulouse in January 1996. The ADSP guidance material resulting from the December 1995 meeting of the ADSP working groups was also heavily consulted. There were extensive editorial changes to align the presentation of standards, recommendations, and notes along the style used for Sub-Volume 5. Part 0 of Sub-Volume 2 will be written for submission to the Brussels WG3 meeting.

Mr. Asbury then briefly outlined the significant changes to the air-ground application SARPs since the Banff draft.

In the CM SARPs, there is a significant functional change. It was noted that a change has been incorporated to allow the air-ground dialogue to be kept open until an explicit close is issued by the ground system.

The ADSP requirements do not explicitly address CNS/ATM-1 Package. Due to this, changes have been made in the ADS SARPs to better match ADSP GM. An example of such a change is the amendment to the ADS SARPs to explicitly leave a contract in place until the next contract is initiated. Mr. Asbury pointed out that certain parameter ranges were odd, being based on the original tabular form. Also some timers had been drastically tightened in the most recent ADSP GM. For example, the indication-to-request timer (from the ASE to the user) for the airborne ADS service is now stated as 0.5 seconds compared to 5.0 seconds previously. The meeting was informed that this was a statement of the freshness of the ADS report data. Mr. Camus reported that this requirement could be met with pre-buffered data, but that gathering new reports required a peripheral latency perhaps beyond one second. Mr. Burgemeister prepared Flimsy 5 on accuracy and resolution requirements for time and timers. The

meeting agreed that some of the lowest ADS reporting rates now being envisioned by the ADSP GM are beyond current avionics and ICAO-standardized subnetwork capabilities. Thus these end-state requirements (e.g., down to a one second ADS reporting rate for airport surface requirements) will not be supported by CNS/ATM-1 Package at the system level even if the initial ADS application itself supports this capability without further change. The meeting agreed to develop applications to not impede ADSP requirements, and let the subnetworks ultimately develop. This will be reflected in CNS/ATM-1 in Sub-Volume 1.

Mr. Asbury then presented an overview of CPDLC. He informed the meeting that the draft report from WG-B of ADSP, Montreal 1995, is in error. The conditions for proposing Downstream Clearance (DSC) be considered by ATNP for CNS/ATM-1 Package are as follows: if the OR was stated, validation support agreed, and SARPs drafted. Eurocontrol (Mr. Rob Meade) with Ms. Hamelink and Mr. Maude drafted the DSC change for the CPDLC SARPs. Mr. Asbury noted that it was a very high-level change.

Mr. Asbury then presented an overview of FIS. He indicated that the SARPs were at a very professional level, and less work remained to be done than on other SARPs.

Mr. Asbury concluded with a request for guidance from WG3 on defect report processing and configuration management. This discussion was deferred to later in the meeting where it could be addressed in a general context for all Sub-Volumes.

## **5.2 Review of draft Air-Ground Application SARPs material**

### **CMA Draft SARPs**

Ms. Hamelink then conducted a detailed review of the draft Context Management Application (CMA) SARPs. She indicated three technical changes:

- a) Allowing CM ground user to accept and thus keep open a data link initiation dialogue.
- b) D-U-ABORT changed to D-ABORT, such that error processing now reflects abort above, in, or below the application layer.
- c) Update PDU now has a separate name from Logon Response, but still is syntactically identical

There was some confusion on the valid use of a 'null' traffic type. After a discussion with WG2 members, Mr. Van Trees then clarified that the use of 'null' traffic type is supported in both the UL and ATN internet SARPs, so that the CM SARPs as drafted are correct in that respect.

Mr. Van Trees undertook to work with Ms. Hamelink on further explanation of the Naming and Addressing guidance material he had earlier provided in WP5-7A.

Mr. Jones indicated he thought the definition of RER which SG2 had imported from ISO 8072 was perhaps too strict since ATN PDUs may be lost due to mobility rather than error conditions. A note was to added to clarify the definition of RER.

Mr. Pearce asked that ground-ground address forwarding, in support of CMA, was included. He indicated that including this in AIDC SARPs, as had been previously envisioned, implied mandatory

AIDC in CNS/ATM-1 Package in order to support this function. A side meeting was convened between SG1 and SG2 members, after which Mr. Asbury reported that ground-ground forwarding requirements in support of air-ground applications would be included in the respective air-ground application SARPs. Editors of the air-ground application SARPs undertook to prepare revised drafts of the air-ground application SARPs that incorporated this added functionality. The revised SARPs were subsequently reviewed by WG3.

Subsequent to the update of the CMA SARPs this revised document (proposed version 2.0) was presented to WG3 by Ms. Hamelink. She lead the working group through the document and pointed the changes that included the editorial changes that resulted from the earlier WG3 review as well as the ground-ground communication elements associated with the overall CM application. The revised draft of the CMA SARPs tightly integrated the ground-ground forwarding functions into the existing air-ground CMA material. Many sections of the draft SARPs were revised to incorporate the new functions. WG3 agreed to forego change bars in the draft and rather accepted a detailed configuration control description of the changes.

### **ADS Draft SARPs**

Mr. Asbury then led the detailed review of the ADS SARPs on behalf of Mr. Tim Maude, the document editor, as Mr. Maude was not in attendance at the WG3 meeting. He indicated that the following changes have been incorporated in the draft since Banff:

- a) Ground cancel emergency indication capability
- b) parameter ranges (realistic values)
- c) brief changes to demand contract

Upon a request from Mr. Edem, Ms. Hamelink undertook to provide possible guidance material on the mapping of service primitives to functional descriptions.

The WG3 agreed to move the state tables in Appendix A to Chapter 5 as a note. The WG3 noted that the SARPs text takes precedence over the state machine description.

Subsequent to the update of the ADS SARPs this revised document (proposed version 2.0) was presented to WG3 by F. Picard. Mr. Picard indicated that he had volunteered to act as temporary editor, whereas the final edit still belonged to the editor, Mr. Maude. Mr. Picard indicated that the major modification of the new version of the SARPs was the addition of ground-ground forwarding of ADS position reports. The ground-ground forwarding has been modeled as a master-slave relationship. The three new services are ground-ground opening, sending, and canceling. New protocol data units and protocol descriptions have been added to support these services. . WG3 approved the progression of the ADS SARPs to v2.0 after noted editorial work. Mr. Jones noted his special thanks to Mr. Picard, and indeed all of SG2, for working throughout the WG3 meeting on the air-ground application SARPs, v2.0 to support very compressed timescales.

### **CPDLC Draft SARPs**

Ms. Hamelink then presented the CPDLC SARPs. She described the changes reflected in version 1.1 that have occurred since Banff. Principal changes relate to:

- a) additional messages to the message set
- b) D-U-ABORT change (change in name in variables)
- c) addition of Downstream Clearance function
- d) aircraft request LOGICAL ACK
- e) accommodate unknown closure at one end
- f) changes to predeparture clearance messages

It was noted by Mr. Anderson that WP5-32 provides additional information on the modifications to the CPDLC SARPs, already incorporated in version 1.1, that resulted from ADSP WG-B inputs.

In response to a question from the Rapporteur, Mr. Asbury and Ms. Hamelink reported that the ADSP WG-B meeting, that was held just prior to the ATNP/WG3 meeting, has produced no new technical requirements that need to be reflected in the CPDLC SARPs related to DSC. However, a number of the safety concerns associated with the use of DSC will be addressed in guidance material for the implementation of DSC being produced by the ADSP. This guidance will address such issues as limiting the set of CPDLC messages used for a DSC ground implementation to only those needed to support the DSC service in a given operational environment.

Subsequent to the update of the CPDLC SARPs this revised document (proposed version 2.0) was presented to WG3 by Ms. J. Hamelink. The principal addition was to provide for ground-ground forwarding of CPDLC message. This is a one-way forwarding with any response. After a few questions relative to the new material, the working group approved the revised SARPs as the new baseline, Version 2.0.

Mr. Burgemeister had submitted WP5-19 providing comments on the Banff version of the draft CPDLC and ADS SARPs. He indicated that it was no longer necessary to present the working paper as the concerns raised by the paper had been addressed by SG2 in preparing the revised draft SARPs.

### **FIS (ATIS) Draft SARPs**

Mr. Picard presented WP5-26 an information paper detailing the status of the FIS draft SARPs. Mr. Frederic Picard then conducted a detailed review of the FIS SARPs. He indicated the following changes:

- a) Description of ATIS messages changed due to ADS-B review,
- b) time stamps added to all messages.
- c) Use of D-ABORT service incorporated.
- d) Reuse of dialogue for several FIS contracts.
- e) Both demand and extended contracts.
- f) Simplified state tables, since only one side can now end dialogue.
- g) Air user can cancel all contracts of given type (i.e., CNS/ATM-1 ATIS). This has been changed to multitype (CANCEL ALL) cancel.

Since the only CNS/ATM-1 Package FIS application is ATIS, it was decided to simply identify the application in the ATN environment as ATIS, rather than the broader category FIS.

Some material was identified in each of the air-ground applications SARPs that can perhaps be moved to GM.

### **5.3 Review of draft Air-Ground Application Guidance Material**

Mr. Asbury said no air-ground application guidance material had yet been produced. This was as a direct result of the changes in functionality required to be incorporated in the main SARPs documentation after the ADSP meeting in Montreal in December 1995. Mr. Asbury said that SG2 saw their priorities as being preparation of SARPs, then validation plans, and finally, appropriate GM.

### **5.4 Air-Ground Application SARPs validation approach and plans**

The following also covers discussions on ULA validation, agenda item 4.4. It was noted that working group 2 had received and endorsed 4 working papers on the subject of validation that would be of interest to WG3. Copies of these four WG2 WPs were distributed to the WG3 members for information purposes and the materials were introduced by Jean-Pierre Briand of Eurocontrol (a member of WG2). WG2 WP/201 described the validation objectives for validation. Although the specific details were focused on the internetwork SARPs, the WP contained a general approach that could be applicable to defining the validation objectives of the WG3 validation activities. The opinion endorsed by a number of the WG3 members was that the approach described in the WP seemed to be applicable to the validation of the ULA SARPs, but was perhaps less applicable to the application SARPs.

WG2 WP/203 provided copies of completed forms (only a sampling of the forms that had been submitted to WG2) describing the validation tools to be used by the member organizations for the validation of the internetwork SARPs. While these forms are not directly applicable to document the validation tools to be used for the validation of the Sub-Volumes 2, 3 and 4 SARPs, the forms provide a model for equivalent forms that could be developed by WG3 for its purposes.

WG2 WP/202 presented an example of a validation exercise specification. Although these exercises are not directly applicable to the validation exercises to be undertaken for the validation of the Sub-Volumes 2, 3 and 4 SARPs, the document provides a example of a high level specification of an validation exercise.

WG2 WP/249 proposes the framework for the CNS/ATM-1 Package Sub-Volume 5 validation report. This outline could be used as the basis to create the report for the overall for CNS/ATM-1 Package

Danny Van Roosebroek of Eurocontrol introduced WP 5-22 on the subject of interoperability testing as a validation tool. The WG noted the proposed validation scenarios. The purpose of the interoperability scenarios is to support interoperability testing between states/organizations developing validation tools. There was a suggestion from the Rapporteur that perhaps the focus of the validation scenarios should be on the North Atlantic operational environment as representative of an oceanic domain. Individual member states and organizations, in a position to do so, could proceed to develop

scenarios appropriate to their domestic operational domains. The scenarios and the validation results could be reported to ATNP/2 within the validation report.

Mr. Van Roosbroek briefed WP5-23 on the use of protocol validation tools, specifically the use of the GEODE protocol simulation tool.

Mr. Picard briefed WP5-28 on the use of the ATN Archive Validation Server. The server at CENA has provided an archive for WG2, and now extends that for WG3. All SARPs, working papers and other WG3 documents are now available on the server. The CENA server can be accessed by ftp over the Internet.

Ms. Loudon briefed WP5-30, the FAA ATN System Validation Plan. The FAA is building to ATNSI RFP PICS for internet and upper layers. The FAA is also validating air-ground application SARPs. Ms. Loudon suggested three levels of validation. Technical Validation demonstrates that you build what is in the SARPs. Functional Validation validates that the function does what you want it to do. Performance Validation demonstrates that it works well enough in realistic operational environments. This leads to overall system validation activity. She reported that CM/ULA will be available at the end of June 1996 to begin functional validation. CPDLC and ADS will be available in September 1996 to begin functional validation..

Mr. Jones set general goals and schedules for validation with an identified need to complete the validation report by Oct. 1996 with well documented results supporting a recommendation for approval of the SARPs at ATNP/2.

Mr. Asbury commented that we do not have luxury of build-a-little, test-a-little. He also speculated that we may not have enough time to test every 'Shall' statement in the SARPs.. Mr. Jones indicated the FAA approach is for a parallel build and step-wise integration.

Mr. F. Picard briefed WP5-27, which describes the efforts of the French CAA (DGAC/CENA) to validate the ATIS (FIS) application SARPs. A modeling tool has been used wherein the ATIS Application Service Element is broken down into modules and the modules into sub-modules. A number of small errors were found in the protocol description from the Banff version of the FIS draft SARPs. These have been corrected by SG2 in the revised draft to the SARPs. WG3 noted that this work has provided a valuable first step for the validation of the ATIS SARPs.

Mr. Jones presented Flimsy 10, on Ground Rules for Validation. The Flimsy amplified the guidelines set forth in Banff. The .Flimsy recognized the value of flight tests. The paper discusses the model for validation data base construction, and a validation specification (with levels ranging from independent interoperable implementations down to simulation and analysis only). The flimsy then recommends the formation of a validation group formed across WG1/2/3. Mr. Van Trees was appointed WG3 point of contract for coordination related to validation with WG1 and WG2. WG3 endorsed the Flimsy with minor editorial changes. The Rapporteur will provide copies to the Rapporteurs of WG1 and WG2.

Mr. Gregg Anderson presented Flimsy 13. This Flimsy proposes traffic densities and message frequencies for the various operational domains. WG3 endorsed that the type of information contained in the Flimsy is essential to the development of the validation scenarios that are needed to progress the

validation of the CNS/ATM-1 Package SARPs. WG3 encourages ATNP WGOW, at their meeting in March 1996, to review and refine the proposed values in the Flimsy and to provide ADSP WGOW endorsed version as input to the April ATNP WG3 meeting.

Mr. Jones briefed WP5-5. This information paper presented results of an analysis of the end-through-end data integrity over the ATN. The paper concluded that the ATN end-system to end-system data integrity substantially exceeds the operational requirements, however attention must be paid to the distribution of application data when application gateways are used as the ATN end systems.

## **5.5 Review plan for Air-Ground application documentation for CNS/ATM-2 Package**

No materials related to CNS/ATM-2 Package were presented to WG3 for review.

## **5.6 Tasking for SG2**

SG2 was tasked to review any comments submitted against version 2.0 of the air-ground application SARPs and to progress the material for a detailed review at the next WG3 meeting in April 1996. SG2 was also task with progressing the air-ground application Guidance Material for review of a first draft the April 1996 WG3 meeting and for approval at the June 1996 WG3 meeting. SG2 with implementing a defect report tracking system against the baseline SARPs using the defect report form in WP5-12 appendix E, modified as necessary.

SG2 was tasked with the development of validation documents (e.g., definition of validation objectives) and serving as the coordination point for validation activities of member organizations to progress the CNS/ATM-1 Package validation program consistent with the approach defined in Flimsy 10 to this meeting report.

# **6. Ground Application SARPs**

## **6.1 Report from SG1**

The chairman of SG1, Jean-Yves Piram, presented WP5-11 that summarized the progress of SG1 since the October 1995 meeting of WG3. He reported that SG1 has held meetings in London and in South Brisbane. He also reported that two drafting group sessions on the ATS Message Handling Service (AMHS) SARPs have been held in Paris and one on Inter-Centre Communication in Montreal some days before the ADSP meeting. He reported that the work has progressed on two main documents, namely the draft SARPs for AMHS and for Inter-Centre Communications.

The AMHS SARPs had been drafted around the structure agreed by WG3 in Banff and includes system level provisions, the ATS message service specification, the AFTN/AMHS gateway specification and the ATN pass-through service specification. Mr. Piram reported that SG1 was in unanimous agreement on the solutions to be retained with the exception of two outstanding items for which decisions were made.

a) Addressing -

O/R addresses of AMHS users should be called MF-Addresses (MHS form), which includes any address form included in the base standards;

Different addressing schemes may be defined for MF-addresses, among which the XF-addressing scheme is included in the SARPs(see section 2.1.5 of the SARPs);

SG1 decided that no other addressing scheme will be defined, nor referred to, in the CNS/ATM-1 Package SARPs. One expert expressed his disagreement with this decision. He recommended that an explicit reference be made in the SARPs to the existing IATA Addressing Schemes included in the IATA Aeronautical OSI Profile (AOP/SCR).

b) Management Domain registration

The subgroup decided that in Package 1, concerning the registration of MHS / X.400 Management Domains, the role of ICAO should be limited to that of a place for declaration. The reason for this difference is the existence of registration procedures of X.400 Management Domains associated with the use of X.400 / MHS standards, by national (non-aeronautical) Registration Authorities or by international Registration Authorities yet to be defined.

One expert expressed his disagreement with this decision. He recommended that ICAO should formally liaise with ITU-T and apply to become the International Registration Authority for ATS Organizations (IATA is currently making the same application for the organizations under its auspices);

SG1 Chairman also reported on the two following subjects:

a) the conformance of the AMHS to X.400 should be a recommendation to permit use of public X.400 services. It is recalled that the requirement for such a conformance was adopted at the WG3 San Diego meeting, the reason being the need to be able to interoperate with public X.400 services (public ADMDs). The impact of this decision is the conditional requirement for Transport Class 0 for interoperation with such public X.400 services (i.e. not over the ATN Internet).

b) the draft SARPs material on the ATN pass-through service has not progressed as fast as the other areas of the SARPs due to the lack of support. SG1 did not consider the material on pass-through service ready for baselining.

The Working Group 3 did not comment at this stage on the above subjects.

Mr. Piram reported that as a result of the first meeting of the ICC Drafting Group (Montreal, 22-24 November 1995), Version 0.2 of the Draft AIDC SARPs was presented to the sixth SG1 meeting



(London, 4-6 December 1995) as being the first ICC application developed for the CNS/ATM-1 Package.

Mr. Piram further reported that a number of changes to the draft AIDC SARPs have resulted from coordination with the ADSP working groups that occurred in November-December 1995 and from inputs received from SG3 related to ULA services. These inputs to SG1 have in the draft AIDC SARPs having been revised as follows:

- a) rationalization of the AIDC services;
- b) defining a dedicated control function for AIDC; and
- c) restructuring of the draft AIDC SARPs.

## **6.2 Review of draft Ground Application SARPs material**

Mr. Jean-Marc Vacher, editor of the AMHS SARPs, presented the draft AMHS SARPs, WP5-10. He provided a chapter-by-chapter summary of the material which was followed by a detailed discussion of the draft SARPs material. There were a number of editorial changes identified and the working group concluded the following significant, although mostly editorial, items:

- a) chapter 1 of the current draft SARPs includes a combination of requirements, notes and material more appropriate as GM. A revised chapter 1 to provide introductory materials, as provided for the other SARPs being drafted by WG3, was requested;
- b) notes in the current draft should be reviewed and moved to GM if appropriate;
- c) generally notes, or statements related to transition issues beyond Package 1 should be moved to GM;
- d) the requirement for message logging will be retain in the draft SARPs however the required period that the logs must be retained will be implicitly covered by a note making reference to the current provision of Annex 10;
- e) SARPs will support ISO X.400 profile and treat CCITT implementation X.400 profiles as a local matter. The GM will provide addition information related to the use of ITU-T (CCITT) X.400;
- f) since MHS will operate over a single transport connection, all messages for the AMHS services will be mapped to a single transport and CLNP priority. Thus multiple application specified priorities will be mapped to a single internetwork priority. Since the ground paths associated with air-ground communications may also traverse the same ground subnetworks as the AMHS traffic, consistent mapping between the air-ground communication priorities and the single AMHS priority has to be assured. The working group concluded that the AMHS should use the transport priority (6) specified for flight regularity communications as

this would prevent an AMHS message from moving ahead of the more time critical flight safety messages associated with some of the air-ground communications.

- g) the working group identified that GM needs to be developed to explain that MTA addressed by the AMHS service are static and would be found from a look-up table. The GM would also explain the relationship of the MTA address to the ATN address;
- h) WP5-29 provides a revised chapter on the pass-through services, but this material will need to be significantly enhanced to bring it up to the same level of detail as the remainder of the draft AMHS SARPs. Comments on this material should be provide to Mr. Moulton;

There was much discussion as to whether the draft AMHS SARPs could be baselined prior to the Brussels WG3 meeting. The working group concluded that although the technical requirements in the draft SARPs presented to the meeting were mature enough, there were a large number of editorial changes needed, including moving certain of the draft material into Guidance Material. The working group concluded that SG1 should issue the next version of AMHS SARPs in the 3rd week of March to WG3 members. Comments should be submitted in writing to the document editor before the SG1 meeting in Brussels in April. The goal of the working group will be to report the initial baseline version (version 1.0) out of the Brussels WG3 meeting.

The working group noted that the maturity of the material on the “pass through service” within the MHS SARPs is not at the same level of technical maturity as the rest of the document. WG3 agreed that the AMHS SARPs could be ready to baseline at Brussels even if the “pass through service” material were not up to the level needed to be considered fully mature. Mr. Kavanaugh indicated that Pass-Through is a direct ATNP/1 requirement, not an isolated technical solution. Mr. Jones indicated the U.S. would support upgrading the Pass-Through Service material and make it available before the Brussels meeting. Mr. Piram will invite the contributor (Mr. Moulton) to enhance the editorial aspects of his contribution, to make it consistent with the above comments and the rest of the AMHS SARPs.

Mr. Piram described the status of the ICC draft SARPs. He indicated that the ADSP has not yet come forward with comprehensive, well defined operational requirements for ICC. However, operational requirements do exist for one specific subset of ICC. This is the ATC Interfacility Data Communications (AIDC) Application. Mr. Claude Leclerc, the editor of the AIDC draft SARPs introduced WP 5-9, the draft ICC SARPs which only include the AIDC Application for the CNS/ATM-1 Package. The AIDC SARPs were presented, but were not proposed as baseline..

There was discussion on two points of the draft that was reviewed by the working group First, the AIDC control function is specific to AIDC, rather than using the generic CF offered in the UL SARPs. Second, the AIDC SARPs do not include the ground-ground support elements for air-ground elements, these being found with the air-ground elements. WG3 agreed that the current Sub-Volume title remained appropriate.

WG3 then performed a chapter review of the AIDC SARPs. Mr. Pearce indicated the service description was complete, and that the protocol description would follow. It was also indicated that the ASN.1 and communications requirements sections were older material, and needed to be updated.

An updated version was prepared during the course of the WG3 meeting and was distributed but not discussed. Comments should be submitted to the document editor until Friday, 15 March 1996. The plans are for the proposed baseline version to be available for review/approval at the Brussels WG3 meeting.

WG3 concluded that the Ground applications SARPs will be included as the first SARPs related agenda item of the WG3 meeting in Brussels, in order to allow the opportunity to incorporate any necessary changes by the conclusion of the WG3 meeting.

### **6.3 Review draft Ground Application Guidance Material**

No Guidance Material was presented to WG3 for review.

### **6.4 Ground Application SARPs validation approach and plans**

This topic was covered in the general sense under agenda item 5.4 above.

### **6.5 Review plans for Ground Application documentation for CNS/ATM-2 Package**

No material directly related to CNS/ATM-2 Package were presented to WG3 for review.

### **6.6 Tasking for SG1**

SG1 was tasked with issuing a revised draft AMHS SARPs by the third week of March 1996, based on the comments received during the WG3 meeting. WG3 members were asked to submit comments in writing to the document editor, Jean-Marc Vacher, prior to the next SG1 meeting (second week of April in Brussels). SG1 was tasked with presenting a proposed baseline AMHS SARPs for review at the next WG3 meeting (Brussels starting 15 April, 1996). SG1 was tasked with preparing the AMHS guidance material with an initial draft submitted for review at the next WG3 meeting.

SG1 was tasked with implementing a defect report tracking system against the SARPs, once baselined, using the defect report form in WP5-12 appendix E, modified as necessary.

SG1 was tasked with progressing the development of validation documents (e.g., definition of validation objectives) and serving as the coordination point for validation activities of member organizations to progress the CNS/ATM-1 Package validation program consistent with the approach defined in Flimsy 10 to this meeting report.

SG1 was also task to progress the ICC draft SARPs. Comments received by the editor on or before 15 March are to be considered when preparing an initial complete draft for review at the next WG3 meeting (April 1996).

## **7.0 Action Plan and Planning for ATNP/2**

Mr. Kraft and Mr. Van Trees led a discussion of the work on Sub-Volume 1. . It was noted that the mobile ATN subnetworks dominate the end-to-end performance expected to be available over the ATN where air-ground communications is concerned. The current work on Sub-Volume 1 is focused on the identification of the highest level technical requirements. It was indicated that WG3 will need to review each Sub-Volume and identify what are actually system level requirements. The plan is to carry forward the system level requirements from the other Sub-Volumes into Sub-Volume 1. Thus for example, Part 0 (System Requirements) of each Sub-Volume could, at least in part, be absorbed in Sub-Volume 1. Mr. Pearce and Mr. Van Roosbroek cited the need to support regional operating concepts. Mr. Van Trees and Mr. Kraft made a presentation on the scope of Sub-Volume 1 to WG3 SARP's editors during the meeting. The general concept is that the World Wide Plan addresses a general introduction, Sub-Volume 1 addresses System Requirements, and Sub-Volumes 2, 3, 4 and 5 are for skilled users only and address the detailed technical requirements. A WG1 drafting group meeting is scheduled in Seattle 25-29 March 1996. The drafting group will extract system-level requirements (e.g., routing on traffic types) with minimal impact to extant Sub-Volumes. There will be another WG1 drafting group meeting on Sub-Volume 1 on 20 April in Brussels. This is on a Saturday during the course of the WG2 and WG3 meetings. The participation of WG3 members in a position to contribute to progressing the work on Sub-Volume 1 is encouraged.

There was a discussion on whether WG3 will need to submit the draft SARP's material to ICAO, for ATNP/2, in the 2 column format used in the ICAO Annexes. WG3 agreed to leave SARP's material in one column format.

The following action item was identified to ensure a consistent use of APRL in the various SARP's Sub-Volumes being submitted to ATNP/2.

***Action Item** - A question was raised for entries under the ATN Support column on the APRLs, should capitals vs. lower-case be used characters be used? The draft SARP's have consistently used lower-case for the ISO base standard column. Unless an ISO definition differs, we will use upper-case for the ATN Support column. This has not been consistently done in all of the draft SARP's presented to WG3 for this meeting. Mr. Van Trees will check ISO 9646-7 and ISO TR 1000 for guidance and report findings to the WG3 document editors.*

The working group noted the proposed revised work program, Flimsy 2, that had been prepared by the ATNP Secretary for the activities of the panel.

## **8.0 Any Other Business**

### **Document Configuration Control**

Mr. Jones presented Flimsy 7 that had been coordinated with WG2. This flimsy proposed the approach for maintaining configuration control on the draft SARP's documents. The proposal to indicate baseline versions with X.0 number (i.e., 1.0, 2.0, etc.) with changes indicated from the previous baseline version. Interim versions would increment the number after the decimal point (e.g., 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, etc.) and would indicate changes since the current baselined version. This proposal was approved by the working group.

Mr. Steve Hiltz presented Flimsy 11 proposing structure for file naming for working papers, information papers, Flimsys, draft SARPs and GM. Some concern was expressed about the ability of the proposed file naming convention being able to accommodate files containing attachments to working papers and for accommodating interim versions of multiple components of a SARPs or GM that are at different revision levels.

Mr. Jones noted WP5-25 an information paper announcing the availability of an FAA World Wide Web site for the FAA's Aeronautical Data Link program.

It was noted that copies of the WG3 documents from the Brisbane meeting would be posted on the CENA ftp server and would be available for downloading by the Internet within a few days after the conclusion of the meeting.

The partial agenda/schedule agreed to for the sixth meeting of WG3 in Brussels, 15-26 April 1996 is:

<u>Agenda Topic</u>	<u>Date(s)</u>
Ground Application SARPs and GM	15-17 April 1996 22 April
ULA SARPs and GM	18-19 April 1996
Air-Ground Application SARPs and GM	24- 25 April 1996

*Rapporteur's Note: The tentative dates for the agenda item for the Air-Ground Application SARPs and GM review was moved by one day subsequent to the conclusion of the Brisbane WG3 meeting to allow for a joint session with WG2 on Tuesday 23 April. The dates above are now consistent with the proposed agenda for the sixth meeting of WG3.*

### Summary of Planned WG3 and Subgroup Meetings

WG3 SG1 ICC drafting group	Location TBD	18-22 March 1996
WG3 SG1 AMHS drafting group	Location TBD	3rd week March 1996
WG3 SG3	Toulouse	18-22 March 1996
WG3 SG1	Brussels (Eurocontrol or Hotel TBD)	10-12 April 1996
WG3 SG2	London	12-16 March 1996
WG3 Sixth Meeting	EUROCONTROL Headquarters, Brussels, Belgium	15-26 April 1996
WG1 Subgroup on Sub-Volume 1	Brussels, Belgium	20 April 1996
WG3 SG2	Toulouse	29 April-2 May 1996
JWG	Munich, Germany	21 June 1996
WG3 Seventh Meeting	Munich, Germany	24-28 June 1996
WG3 Eighth Meeting	United States (specific location to be determined)	7-15 October 1996
JWG	U.S.	17-18 October 1996
ATNP/2 (Panel Meeting)	ICAO Hdq. Montreal, Canada	5-16 November 1996 (tentative)

## **List of Attachments**

Attachment 1 - WG3 Draft Agenda

Attachment 2 - WG3 Attendance List

Attachment 3 - WG3 List of Working Paper

Attachment 4 - List of WG3 Document Editors

## ATNP WG3 - Fifth Meeting - AGENDA

5-14 February 1996

1. Administrative Items and Approval of the Agenda
  - 1.1 Administrative announcements
  - 1.2 Discuss arrangements for Sixth WG3 meeting (April 1996 in Brussels)
  - 1.3 Review Agenda
2. Review and Approve Reports of the fourth meeting (Banff) of WG3
  - 2.1 Review issues and action items from previous WG3 meeting
3. Review inputs received from other ATNP working groups and other ICAO bodies
  - 3.1 Review inputs/results from the WG1 meeting
  - 3.2 Review inputs from the ADS Panel
  - 3.3 Review inputs from other ICAO bodies
4. ATN Upper Layer SARPs
  - 4.1 Report from SG3
  - 4.2 Review of draft ULA SARPs material
  - 4.3 Review of draft ULA Guidance Material
  - 4.4 ULA SARPs validation approach and plans
  - 4.5 Review plans for ULA documentation for CNS/ATM-2 Package
  - 4.6 Tasking for SG3
5. Air-Ground Application SARPs
  - 5.1 Report from SG2
  - 5.2 Review of draft Air-Ground Application SARPs material
  - 5.3 Review of draft Air-Ground Application Guidance Material
  - 5.4 Air-Ground Application SARPs validation approach and plans
  - 5.5 Review plans for Air-Ground Application documentation for CNS/ATM-2 Package
  - 5.6 Tasking for SG2
6. Ground Application SARPs
  - 6.1 Report from SG1
  - 6.2 Review of draft Ground Application SARPs material
  - 6.3 Review draft Ground Application Guidance Material
  - 6.4 Ground Application SARPs validation approach and plans
  - 6.5 Review plans for Ground Application documentation for CNS/ATM-2 Package
  - 6.6 Tasking for SG1
7. Action Plan and Planning for ATNP/2
  - 7.1 Report on action plan or resolution of issues/action items from earlier agenda items
  - 7.2 Discuss need for Sept. 1996 WG3 meeting to finalize validation report to ATNP/2
  - 7.3 Review proposed agenda for ATNP/2
8. Any other business



Anderson, Gregg	FAA/Air Traffic Requirement Services	800 Independence Ave SW Washington, DC 20591 USA	202-358-5042 202-358-5092	Gregg_Anderson@mail.hq.faa.gov
Asbury, Michael	UK NATS	Room T804b CAA House 45-59 Kingsway, London WC2B 6TE UK	44-171-832-5472 44-171-832-5562	
Bigelow, Michael	ARINC Fellow	MS 6-2107, 2551 Riva Road Annapolis, MD 21401 USA	(410) 266-4378 (410) 266-4499	mpb@arinc.com
Burgemeister, Alvin	Avionics Engineer, Boeing Commercial Airplane Group	M/S 02-60, P.O. Box 3707 Seattle, WA 98124-2207 USA	(206) 266-3738 (206) 294-5666	burahb00@ccmail.ca.boeing.com
Calow, Tom	Transport Canada	Place De Ville (AANFV) Ottawa, Canada KIA ON8	(613) 957-6350 (613) 957-6862	calowt@tc.gc.ca
Camus, Paul	Aerospatiale	Teuchos 20 chemin Laporte 31-300 Toulouse , FRANCE	33-61-30-9046 33-61-30-9033	
Castro, Luiz	DEPV - GEIV	Aeroporto Santos Dumont 4o Andar Rio de Janeiro-RJ CEP 20021 BRAZIL	55-21-212-5425 55-21-212-5420	
Chiawarcheep, Sukluer	Executive Engineer, AEROTHAI	102 Ngamduplee, Tungmahamek Sathorn, Bangkok, THAILAND	(662) 285-9150 (662) 285-9175	
CID, Jesus	Communications Division, AENA	Juan Ignacio Luca De Terra No. 14 28027 - Madrid SPAIN	34-1-3213261 34-1-3213116	egonzalez@ngdra.aena.es
Edem, Efifiom	SITA	18 Rue Paul Lafargue 92904 Paris-la-defense FRANCE	33-1-4641-1370 33-1-4641-1594	efifiom.edem@es.par.sita.int
GIORDANO, Domenico	Azienda Autonoma di Assistenza al Volo - Research and Development Dept	Via Salaria, 716 00138 Roma ITALY	396-8166631 396-8166639	
Hamelink, Jane	FAA/Adsytech	8401 Colesville Rd. Silver Spring, MD 20910 USA	1-301-589-3434 1-301-589-9254	
Hennig, Paul	United/ IATA	United Airlines, WHQKO 1200 Algonquin Road Elk Grove, IL 60007 USA	1-708-952-4312 1-708-952-4477	paulhennig@aol.com
Hiltz, Steve	Transport Canada	Place de Ville, AANFVC, Ottawa, Ontario, CANADA K1A 0N8	(613) 957-6919 (613) 957-6862	hiltzs@tc.gc.ca
Itano, Ken	ENRI	6-381-1 Shinkawa Mitaka, shi, Tokyo, 181 Japan	81 422413191 81 422413192	ken200@enri.go.jp

Jampathom, Bhumisathit	Senior VP AEROTHAI	102 Ngamduplee Tung Mahamek Bangkok 10120 GPO 535 THAILAND	(662)286-0092 (662) 287-3451	
Jones, Ron	FAA	800 Independence Ave SW , AND-310 Washington DC 20591 USA	(202) 358-5030 (202) 358-5092	rjones@mail.hq.faa.gov
Kavanaugh, Michael	FAA	800 Independence Ave SW AOP-600/Rm 731 Washington DC 20591 USA	(202) 267-7855 (202) 267-5543	mkavanaugh@mail.hq.faa.gov
Komine, Satoshi	NEC Corp.	29.23, SHIBA 5-Chome, Minato-Ku, Tokyo 108, JAPAN	81-3-3456-7742 81-3-3456-7747	komine@atc.mt.nec.co.jp
Koopman, Egon	DFS Germany	Kaiserleistrasse 29-35 D-63067 Offenbach, GERMANY	49-69-8054-2430 49-69-8054-2495	101377.6328@compuserve.com
Kraft, Tom	FAA/ANM-107K	1601 Lind Ave. SW Renton, WA 98055-4056 USA	206-227-2129 206-227-1182	tom_kraft@hq.faa.gov
Leclerc, Claude	Eurocontrol Division DED.3	Rue de la Fussé 96 B--1130 Brussels, BELGIUM	(32)-2-729-3355 (32)-2-729-9086	leclerc.claude@eurocontrol.be
Louden, Gigi	MITRE/ CAASD	M/S W297 7525 Colshire Drive Mclean, VA 22102 USA	703-883-7521 703-883-1330	glouden@mitre.org
Marsh, Owen	Airservices Australia	25 Constitution Ave., GPO Box 367 Canberra, ACT, AUSTRALIA 2601	61-6-268-4202 61-6-268-4099	owen.marsh@airservices.gov.au
Masaharu, Akimoto	JCAB	2-1-3 Kasumigaseki Chiyoda-ku Tokyo, 100, JAPAN	81-3-3580-7566 81-3-3581-5849	
Mizoguchi, Tetuo	Mitsubishi Electric	325 Kamimachiya, Kamakura Kanagawa, JAPAN	81-467-43-8231 81-467-43-1573	mizoguti@eme050.cow.melco.co.jp
Moulton, James	JIL/ONS -FAA	5 Rutledge Court Sterling, VA 20165 USA	703-430-2668 703-430-5932	moulton@ons.com
Okle, Manfred	NORTEL-DASA, ND250	88039 Friedrichshafen , GERMANY	49-7545-8-5600 49-7545-8-3593	
Pearce, Stephen	Airservices Australia	25 Constitution GPO Box 367 Canberra ACT AUSTRALIA 2601	61-6-268-5552 61-6-268-4099	stephen.Pearce@airservices.gov.au
Picard, Frédéric	CENA DGAC	7 bd Edouard Belin BP4005 31055 Toulouse Cedex FRANCE	33-62-25-95-31 33-62-25-95-99	PICARD_Frederic.@cena.dgac.fr
Piram, J. Yves	STNA Chef Subdivision Messagerie Ops	1 Ave du Docteur Maurice Gynfogel BP 1084 31035 Toulouse CEDEX FRANCE	33-1-62-14-54-70 33-1-62-14-53-53	piram@cenaath.cena.dgac.fr

PORRAS del los Rios, Ricardo	Isdefe - Ingenieria de Sistemas	Edison, 4 28006 Madrid SPAIN	341 4115011 341 4114703	rporras@isdefe.es
Rongthong, Somnuk	Director, Computer System Programming Aerothai	102 Ngamduplee, Tungmahamek Sathorn, Bangkok, THAILAND	(662) 285-9246 (662) 287-3131	rongth@mozart.inet.co.th
Saccone, Greg	Hughes Canada	200-13571 Commerce Pkwy Richmond BC V6V 2J3 CANADA	604-231-3080 604-278-3469	gsacc@iossvr.gm.hac.com or Greg.Saccone_at_1- BCCDFA@ccgate.hac.com
Sakave, Naoto	Mitsubishi Electric	325 Kamimachiya, Kamakura Kanagawa, Japan	81-467-43-8288 81-467-43-1573	sakaue@eme050.cow.melco.co.jp
Takayuki, Holikoshi	OKI	16-8, Chuou 1-chome, Warabi-shi Saitama pref Japan	81 484314035 81 484319116	takayuki@warabi.cs.oki.co.jp
Vacher, Jean-Marc	ON - X	15 quai de Dion Bouton 92800 Puteaux FRANCE	33-1-4099-1414 33-1-4099-9958	jmvacher@on-x.com
Van Roosbroek, Danny	Eurocontrol	Rue de la Fusée, 96 1130 Brussels, BELGIUM	32-2-729-34-71 32-2-729-90-83	van-roosbroek.danny@ eurocontrol.be
Van Trees, Steve	FAA/Stel	1761 Business Center Drive Reston, VA 22090-5338 USA	1-703-438-8014 1-703-438-8112	vantrees@sed.stel.com

**ATTACHMENT 3****LIST OF WORKING PAPERS**

ATNP WG3 - Fifth Meeting - South Brisbane, Australia - 5-14 Feb. 1996

<b>No</b>	<b>Agenda Item</b>	<b>Presenter</b>	<b>Title</b>
5-1	1	R. Jones	Agenda
5-2	2	R. Jones	ATNP WG3 Report Fourth Meeting (Banff, Oct. 1995)
5-3	4.4, 5.4 6.4 & 7.2	R. Jones	Approach for Developing Validation Reports for CNS/ATM-1 Package Draft SARPs
5-4	3.1	R. Jones	ATNP WG1 Requests for Inputs on Overall Security Concept
5-5 IP	5.4	R. Jones	End-through-End Data Integrity and the ATN
5-6	4.2	S. Van Trees	Draft CNS/ATM-1 Package ULA SARPs
5-7	4.3	S. Van Trees	Draft CNS/ATM-1 Package ULA Guidance Material
5-8	4.1	S. Van Trees	Report of SG3
5-9	6.2	J. Piram	Draft CNS/ATM-1 Package ICC SARPs
5-10	6.2	J. Piram	Draft CNS/ATM-1 Package MHS Over the ATN SARPs
5-11	6.1	J. Piram	Report of SG1
5-12	5.2	M. Asbury	Draft Air/Ground Applications SARPs Material Developed by SG2 (version 1.1)
5-13			Not Used
5-14			Not Used
5-15			Not Used
5-16			Not Used
5-17	4.4	S. Van Trees	CNS/ATM-1 Upper Layers Validation
5-18	4.5	S. Van Trees	CNS/ATM-2 Upper Layer SARPs Planning
5-19	5.2	A. Burgemeister	Review of Draft SARPs for CPDLC and ADS
5-20	4.2	P. Hennig	ATN Systems RFP PICS
5-21	3.1	R. Jones	WG1 Actions of Relevance to WG3
5-22	5.4	D. Van Roosbroek	Use of Interoperability Testing as a Validation Tool

<b>No</b>	<b>Agenda Item</b>	<b>Presenter</b>	<b>Title</b>
5-23 IP	5.4	D. Van Roosbroek	Eurocontrol Activities on Validation using a Protocol Simulation Tool
5-24 IP	1.2	D. Van Roosbroek	ICAO/ATNP Meeting in Brussels
5-25 IP	8	R. Jones	U.S. FAA Data Link Web Site
5-26 IP	5.2	F. Picard	Draft ICAO SARPs, Flight Information Services - Status of the draft SARPs Version 1.1
5-27 IP	5.2	F. Picard	Draft ICAO SARPs, Flight Information Services - Verification of FIS Protocol - Approach and Results
5-28 IP	5.2	F. Picard	ATN Validation Archive Server
5-29	6.2	J. Piram	ATN Pass-Through Service
5-30	5.4	G. Louden	FAA ATN System Validation Plan
5-31	5.1	M. Asbury	Report of the 6th Meeting of ATNP WG3, SG2, Toulouse, 8-12 January, 1996
5-32	5.2	M. Asbury	Modification to Response Attributes in CPDLC

**Attachment 4**  
**List of WG3 SARPs Editors**

CPDLC and CMA	Hamelink, Jane	FAA/ Adsystem	8401 Colesville Rd. Silver Spring, MD 20910 USA	1-301-589-3434 1-301-589-9254	
ULA	KERR, Tony	Level 7, Centennial Court	East Hampstead Road Bracknell Berkshire RG12 1YQ UNITED KINGDOM	44-1344-86-7199 44-1344-86-8442	tony.kerr@level-7.co.uk
ICC	Leclerc, Claude	Eurocontrol Division DED.3	Rue de la Fussé 96 B--1130 Brussels, BELGIUM	(32)-2-729-3355 (32)-2-729-9086	leclerc.claude@eurocontrol.be
ADS	Maude, Tim	Level 7, Centennial Court	East Hampstead Road Bracknell Berkshire RG12 1YQ UNITED KINGDOM	44-1344-86-7199 44-1344-86-8442	tim.maude@level-7.co.uk
ATIS (FIS)	Picard, Frédéric	CENA DGAC	7 bd Edouard Belin BP4005 31055 Toulouse Cedex FRANCE	33-62-25-95-31 33-62-25-95-99	PICARD_Frederic.@cena.dgac.fr
AMHS	Vacher, Jean-Marc	ON - X	15 quai de Dion Bouton 92800 Puteaux FRANCE	33-1-4099-1414 33-1-4099-9958	jmvacher@on-x.com

